
ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

Gulf Brook Channel Restoration Project 
 

Town of Keene, New York 
 

October 8, 2014 
 
TO ALL CONTRACT DOCUMENT HOLDERS AND PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS: 
 
This Addendum is issued to document clarifications and modifications to the Contract 
Documents for the Gulf Brook Channel Restoration Project.  This Addendum is made a part of 
the Contract Documents.  Each bidder must acknowledge receipt of the Addendum on the 
Proposal Form. 
 
1. A Pre-Bid Meeting was held at the project site on October 3, 2014 at 1:00 PM.  Minutes from 

the meeting are enclosed with this Addendum and are made part of the Contract 
Documents. 

 
2. The structure of the bid has been modified.  The project shall be bid as a Lump Sum Bid for 

the entire project except for Type IV Rock, Type VI Rock and 115 trees and shrubs identified 
in Planting Area 1 and 2 on Sheet ER.1.  The Type IV and VI Rock shall be bid as unit bid 
items with an estimated quantity of 750 cubic yards of Type IV Rock and 3,140 cubic yards 
of Type VI Rock.  The trees and shrubs shall be bid as a separate lump sum item.   

 

The reason for the unit price bid for Type IV and VI Rock is that there is a significant amount 
of material on-site that can be used for Type IV and VI Rock in the construction of the 
project; however, the amount available has not been quantified.  The contractor shall use as 
much existing material from the site as possible and only bring on what additional material is 
needed to construct the project per the plans and specifications.  If the actual amount of 
Type IV or VI Rock that is brought to the site is less than the estimates on the Proposal 
Form then the contract will be adjusted downward based on the unit price and the number of 
cubic yards of rock less than the estimate.  Similarly, if more Type IV or VI Rock is used than 
the estimate on the Proposal Form is brought to the site, the contract will be increased in 
accordance with the amount of material that is additional to the estimated quantity.  The 
quantities have been determined conservatively and are based on the assumption that no 
material from on the site will be able to be re-used. 
 
The reason for the separation of the trees and shrubs into a separate bid item is that the 
NRCS grant cannot pay for this work and the costs must be kept separate. 

 
3. Permits.  The NYSDEC has issued a Special Authorization allowing work in the brook to 

extend to November 30, 2014 (refer to attached DEC#5-1530-00170/00001).  Although an 
extension has been granted, the NYSDEC strongly urges that disturbance to the brook be 
minimized to the extent possible and in-stream work be completed as soon as possible.  An 
Army Corps of Engineers Permit has also been obtained and is attached No. NAN-2014-
00780-UCO). 

 



4. Add alternate No. 1: Power Generator Re-location has been eliminated from the project.  
The Proposal Form has been revised accordingly 

 
5. Specification Index:  In the list of Design Plans, DELETE “EC.1: Erosion, Sediment Control, 

and Landscaping Plan, 9/24/2014” and REPLACE WITH “ER.1: Erosion, Sediment Control, 
and Landscaping Plan, 9/24/2014”. 
 

6. Sheet CV.1:  In the Sheet Index DELETE “EC.1: Erosion, Sediment Control, and 
Landscaping Plan, 9/24/2014” and REPLACE WITH “ER.1: Erosion, Sediment Control, and 
Landscaping Plan, 9/24/2014”. 
 

7. Plans and Specifications:  In general where there are discrepancies between the plan 
sheets and the technical specifications, the plans shall take precedence.  Specifically in 
sections 211.2.3, 212.23, and 213.2.3 Boulders shall conform to the Boulder Vane Notes on 
sheet D.2. 
 

8. Sheet D.2. Boulder Cluster Notes.  The boulders used for the boulder clusters need not be 
angular and may be sourced from the existing project site. 
 

9. Sheet SP.1, Sheet ER.1, and Sheet D.1: Vegetated Rock Slope.  Live stakes shall be 
spaced an average approximate spacing of two feet. 

 

10. Attached is an Engineering Estimate of Quantities are provided for reference.  The contract 
shall be responsible for verifying the quantities for use in developing a bid price and will be 
responsible for completing the project for the Total Bid Price regardless of discrepancies 
between actual and estimated quantities to complete the work. 

 

11. As indicated in the Pre-Bid Meeting minutes, excess excavated material shall be transported 
to the Town Transfer Station and Highway Garage site.  It will be the responsibility of the 
contractor to properly dispose of tree stumps and any other waste generated by the project. 

 
12. Answers to questions received in writing to date: 
 

• When reading the specification for removal of water (page 185 of pdf file) it talks about a 
unit price schedule and a unit removal price per 1000 gallons of water.  Is there a unit 
price schedule for this job? 
The technical specifications are set up to be applicable for a variety of bid formats.  The 
project will be bid as described in Item 2 of this Addendum. 
 

• Will the Town of Keene provide and upland settling basin area for turbid water to 
pumped to per the permit requirements (page 228 of pdf document)? 
The sediment basin at the downstream end of the project will provide primary sediment 

control during construction.  If turbidity is a problem it may become necessary to 

implement other in-stream measures such as filtration through crushed stone, sand, 

straw bales, silt screening, in accordance with Item 15.c. of the permit.  As the boulder 

vanes are constructed they will also enhance sediment removal during construction.  

 

• Will the DEC allow the flow of turbid water to discharge from this project when using a 
diversion channel instead of a pumping system as suggested at the prebid? 
Refer to the answer to the previous question. 



 

• Will the boulder cross vanes have geotextile installed under them per the specifications? 
Yes.  Depending on the material that is uncovered in preparation for the placement of 
boulders to construct the vanes, the engineer may waive the requirement to install the 
geotextile. 
 

• The cross sections show the existing grade and the finished grade. My interpretation is 
that we actually will have to export quite a bit more soil material by the time we dig out 
the 72” subgrade that is to be backfilled with rip rap material, is this correct? 
Yes. 
 

• Who is the owner of this project The Town of Keene or US Department of Agriculture? 
The Town of Keene. 
 

• On SP 1 on the top Plan View you show Re-Vegetated Bank and on ER.1 it calls it out 
as a Vegetated Rock Slope- does this get the Heavy rock fill similar to the detail or is this 
just native Ground dug to finish grade and plantings added? 
From Station 13+00 upstream to approximately Station 10+15, the northern bank will 

have Type IV Rock Slope Protection to a height of 4’ from the toe of the bank.  The bank 

above the Type IV Rock Slope Protection will be re-planted with suitable vegetation (per 

the right side of detail A/D.1).  Downstream of the Station 13+00 to the existing concrete 

block wall, the upper portion of the northern bank will consist of Vegetated Type VI Rock 

Slope Protection.  From Station 12+30 to 14+30, the entire upper portion of the southern 

bank above the flood bench will consist of Vegetated Type VI Rock Slope Protection.  

The Vegetated Type VI Rock Slope Protection will continue along the upper portion of 

the southern bank downstream of the flood bench from Station 14+30 to 16+50. 

 

• What is the limits of the 2’ Channel flow restoration is it 17+00 or is it 17+75 in the 
sediment trap area? 
The major channel reshaping ends at 17+00.  At the end of the project work in the area 

between 17+00 and 17+75 will consist primarily of cleaning out sediment, removing or 

breaking up the temporary check dam and rock fill reinforcement to protect the toe of the 

concrete block wall per details C and D on sheet D.1. 

 

• On Sheet D.1 Detail C shows ROW of Boulders or Wood Guide rail how many are there 
and of what size or what is the wood guide rail detail do you want to use if so what is the 
length? 
The contractor shall use existing boulders from the site to create a barrier sufficient to 
prevent vehicles from rolling into the channel from the driveway.  The final size and 
placement shall be coordinated with the landowner. 
 

• Is there any ledge Rock that needs to be blasted the Spec speaks about it however I see 
no way to come up with a quantity? 
No ledge has been encountered in any of the excavation activities following Tropical 
Storm Irene in the project area.  
 

• In the Spec you speak of this being a unit price bid with quantities that you give and not 
exceeding 30% and so on however all I see is a Lump Sum Price for the Project with an 



Alternate for add alternate to relocate a generator where is it? How big is it? Where is it 
going? Are there and details? Are we responsible to hook it up? 
The generator has been removed from the project.  Refer to Item 2 of this Addendum for 
further description on the structure of the bid. 
 

• You have a detail for a water service where are these and how long are the services and 
what size? 
There is one water service located at approximate station 12+90 that is shown on the 
plans and has been marked by the Town water department in the field.  It is reportedly a 
¾ inch copper pipe and is reported to be sheathed in a culvert below the channel where 
is crosses the brook.  This water service may be encountered and may need to be 
modified to construct the proposed channel improvements. 
 

• Sheet XS.1 in checking you’re cross sections your areas are all off you show a cut of 
932 cy in actuality it is 4979.63 CY and that is only existing grades to finish grades, 
when you add in the layers you are more than double that quantity. Is the Town ready to 
receive that kind of quantity? 
The quantities on sheet XS.1 are just what is located below the ordinary high water level 
and is there for permitting purposes only.  An estimate of cut and fill quantities has been 
provided in Item 10 for this Addendum. 
 

• No Bid Bond provided in spec, so are we using the standard Bid Bond? 
A standard Bid Bond is acceptable. 
 

• Are there any liquidated damages applied to this project.  
No liquidated damages 

 
Attachments: Pre-Bid Meeting Minutes 
  Proposal Form (Rev. 10/8/2014) – last 3 pages only 
  NYSDEC Permit #5-1530-00170/00001 
  USACOE Permit #NAN-2014-00780-UCO 
  Engineers Estimate of Quantities 



 

 
 
 

PRE-BID MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Date:  October 3, 2014 
Project   Gulf Brook Brook Channel Restoration Project 
Project Owner:   Town of Keene, New York 
 
Attending: Erik Sandblom, PE, ESPC Civil and Environmental Engineering 
 Evan Fitzgerald, Fitzgerald Environmental Associates (FEA) 
 Bill Ferebee, Keene Town Supervisor 
 Ethan Bentley, USDA NRCS 
 Dave Reckahn, Essex County Soil & Water Conservation Service 
 Dan Burrits, Acts II 
 Todd Paton, CEG 
 Peter Reale, Reale Construction Co 
 Seth Morris, Goodwin Pumps 
 Jonathan Wilson, CFI Contracting 
 James Welsh, Bast-Hatfield 
 Rory Rotella, Kubricky Construction 
 Pete Green, Mansfield Construction 
 Travis Luck, Luck Brothers 
 Jonathan Pakan, Slate Hill Construction 
 Dan Sitka, Jr., New Century Construction 
 Scott Lewis, Wesson Group 
 Bill Haseltine, John W. Sheehan & Sons 
 Cindy Garso, MJ Raymond Construciton 
 Mike Dillon, Tioga Construction 
 Mike Ward, Ward Logging, LLC 
 Ken Wieder, Marcy Construciton 
 Jeremy Fowler, Branon Construciton 
 
A scheduled pre-bid meeting was held for the above referenced project on 
October 3, 2014 at 1:00 PM.  The meeting was held in the former Keene Fire 
Station on Hurricane Road at the project site.  The following items were 
discussed: 
 

1. E. Sandblom and E. Fitzgerald reviewed the project description, 
background, and scope including identification of the Town of Keene as 
the owner and NRCS and State of New York as funding sources. 

 
2. Permits:  A NYSDEC General Permit has been issued by the Essex 

County Soil & Water Conservation District.  The NYSDEC has also 
issued a Special Authorization allowing a one-time extension to 
Condition 14 of the General Permit to allow in-stream work until 
November 30, 2014.  Although it is noted that it is expected that the 
contractor shall complete in-stream (low flow channel) work as soon as 
possible prior to that extension deadline.  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
Permit is expected to be received prior to the commencement of 
construction (by October 20, 2014). 
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3. Easements are being obtained from four (4) property owners to allow the 

work.  It is expected that all easements will be obtained prior to the 
commencement of construction (by October 20, 2014). 

 
4. The approximate extent of clearing and excavation on the property 

across the brook from Hurricane Road and the former fire station has 
been marked with blue flagging (Auer property). 
 

5. The former fire station building will be completely demolished and 
removed by others, including the slab and foundation by the 
commencement of construction (by October 20, 2014). 
 

6. A revised Proposal Form will be issued with Addendum No. 1 and will 
include removal of Add Alternate #1 (relocation of the generator) and will 
include a requirement that unit prices be provided for a short list of key 
bid items that will be used as the basis for negotiating a change order for 
the addition or deletion of items in the project. 
 

7. The waste area for excess excavated material will be the site of the 
Keene Transfer Station and Town Highway Garage located 
approximately 3 miles from the project site via Route 73 and Shaffer 
Road. 
 

8. Bids are due Wednesday, October 15, 2014 at the Keene Town Offices.  
The Advertisement for Bids erroneously indicated Friday. 
 

9. One of the attendees requested that approximate cut and fill quantities 
be provided.  This will be provided in Addendum No. 1. 
 

10. The bridge at Buck’s Lane and the private Bridge just upstream of the 
project area will not be available for the contractor’s use.  A method of 
brook crossing was discussed using large boulders on-site spaced so 
that low flow in the brook may pass through the voids. 

 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Erik C.F. Sandblom, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 
 
Attachments: Meeting Sign-In Sheet 
 











Proposal Form (Rev. 10/8/2014) 

PROPOSAL 

 
Date:_____________________ 

 
Proposal of ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

to furnish and deliver all labor, supervision, materials, and equipment and perform all work in 
accordance with the Specifications for Gulf Brook Channel Stabilization Project in the Town of 
Keene, New York for the following lump sum cost. 
 
The owner, Town of Keene, is tax-exempt. Do not include sales tax in Bid amounts. 
 
The undersigned bidder has carefully examined the contract documents, site of the work, is 
familiar with existing conditions, and will provide all necessary insurance, bonds, machinery, 
tools, apparatus, false work and other means of construction, and do all the work and furnish all 
the materials called for by said contract according to the following bid, including all labor, 
supplies and equipment, permits, fees, overhead and profit for the following Lump Sum price 
and unit price for one specific item. The Total Bid price is the sum of the Lump Sum Base Bid, 
the Lump Sum Trees and Shrubs Bid, and the Total Unit Price Bid for Type IV Rock and Type 
VI Rock and is to be shown in both words and figures. In the event of discrepancies, the amount 
shown in words shall govern. All items are to be furnished and installed in place complete. 
 
LUMP SUM BASE BID:  Lump Sum Price that includes all work in the 
contract documents except for Type IV Rock, Type VI Rock and 115 trees  
and shrubs identified  in Planting Area 1 and 2 on Sheet ER.1 $_______________________ 
 

LUMP SUM TREES AND SHRUBS BID:  Lump Sum Price that  
includes supplying and planting 115 trees and shrubs identified  in  
Planting Area 1 and 2 on Sheet ER.1 $_______________________ 
 
UNIT PRICE BID FOR TYPE IV and VI ROCK: 

 Item Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Unit Price Bid 
     (Quantity x Unit Price) 
 
 Type IV Rock 750 cubic yard $___________ $________________ 
 
 Type IV Rock 3,140 cubic yard $___________ $________________ 
 

TOTAL BID  

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

(Amount in Words) 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Amount in Figures) 



Proposal Form (Rev. 10/8/2014) 

 
The undersigned further understands that the contract will be awarded to the competent, qualified 
bidder submitting the lowest bid for the Total Bid. 
 

ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
 Addendum No.  Date Received 
 
 _______________________ ____________________ 
 
 _______________________ ____________________ 
 
 _______________________ ____________________ 
 
 _______________________ ____________________ 
 

UNIT PRICES: 

 
The undersigned proposes unit prices as follows for use in determining cost of work added to or 

deducted from the Contract.  Said unit prices shall include all charges for installation, 

supervision, taxes, insurance and profit. See Contract Documents for Unit Price descriptions. 

 
Cost per cu.yd. Rock / Ledge Removal $_________________ 

 
Cost per cu.yd. Common Excavation  $_________________ 

 
Cost per sq. yd. Geotextile   $_________________ 

 
Cost per cu.yd. Boulder Vane Boulders $_________________ 

 
Cost per cu.yd. Fill Material (Stone)   $_________________ 

 

  



Proposal Form (Rev. 10/8/2014) 

The undersigned agrees as follows: 
1. The total contract price bid shall be accepted as full compensation for the complete work 

subject to additions or deductions in quantity of work performed or changes agreed upon. 
2. Within twenty (20) days from the date of “Notice of Acceptance” of the Proposal, to 

execute the contract and to furnish a satisfactory labor, material and performance bond in 
the amount of 

3. 100% of the contract price. 
4. To execute the work as specified herein as soon as possible after notice of award.  
5. To comply with requirements as to the conditions of employment, wage rates and hours 

set forth in the bidding documents. 
6. Progress Payments will be made on a percentage of completion basis monthly. 
7. 5% Retainage will be withheld until final approval of project(s). 

 
 
Bidder: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
By:   __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Title:   __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Dated:   __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone:  __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Fax:   __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Social Security/Federal ID No:  ________________________________________________ 
 

Email:   __________________________________________________________________ 

 



































ESPC Project#: 20121253

10/07/14

Gulf Brook Channel Restoration Project

Keene, NY 

Engineer's Estimate of Quantities 

Item# Description Unit

Estimated 

Quantity

1 Clearing and Grubbing (including trees and stumps) Acre 0.2

2 Common Excavation
1

CY 7,470

3 Geotextile Fabric Under Stone Fill SY 4,800

4 Type IV Rock Slope Protection
2

CY 750

5 Type VI Rock Slope Protection
2

CY 3,140

6 Boulder Vane EACH 5

7 Boulder Clusters EACH 18

8 Live Stakes (for vegetated stone fill) EACH 1800

9 Compost / Soil Amendment Backfill for Vegetated Stone Fill CY 460

10 Miscellaneous Erosion and Sediment Control LS 1

11 Water Service Modification
3

LS 1

12 Mobilization / Demobilization LS 1

13 Native Trees 3' to 6' with Tubs and Mats
4

EACH 115

Notes:

1. Common Excavation quantities based on the following calculations and assumptions:

a. Cut/Fill from Existing to Proposed Grade 

Cut  =  4,725 CY

Fill  = 1,155 CY

Net = 3,570 CY (Cut)

b. Excavation for Rock Slope Protection = 3,900 CY (Cut)

c.  A portion of the native rock material cut will be suitable for reuse as boulder clusters or incorporated in the Rock Slope 

Protection.  However, cut quantities conservatively assume all material will be hauled offsite.

2.  Rock Slope Protection Quantities provided do not include an estimate of native rock materials that will be reused.  Based on field observations, 

it is assumed that a portion of the Rock Slope Protection quantity will come from suitable native materials, and that additional rock material will 

need to be hauled to the site.  The exact quantities of each will be determined in the field during construction.  

3.  Water Service Connect and Curb Stop for the Auer Residence may require modification due to the proposed improvements.  Consequently, this 

shall be considered a contingent item.  

4.  The NRCS will not pay for the installation of native trees and shrubs.  Consequently , the Town will have to cover the costs should they be 

included in the project.   

The engineer's estimate of construction quantities is based on ESPC's reasonable professional judgment and experience and does not constitute a 

warranty, express or implied.  The contrator shall be responsible for confirming the quantities used in his / her bid.


